BID NO. T-11014/49/2015-Tech DATED 4th DECEMBER 2015

Request for Proposal FOR Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Contract (CAMC) of IT Equipments

4th December, 2015

UNIQUE IDENTIFICATION AUTHORITY OF INDIA,
Department of Electronics & Information Technology (DeitY)
Ministry of Communication & Information Technology
GOVERNMENT OF INDIA,
NEW DELHI

Contents

CHECK LIST4				
SEC'	FION I – Invitation to Bid	6		
SEC'	ΓΙΟΝ ΙΙ- Instruction to Bidders	8		
1.	Procedure for Submission of Bids	8		
2	Cost of Bid Document			
3	Contents of the Bid Document			
4	Clarification of Bid Document			
5	Amendment of Bid Document			
6	Language of Bids			
7	Documents Comprising the Bids			
8	Bid Prices	10		
9	Firm Prices	11		
10	Discount	11		
11	Bidder Qualification	11		
12	Bid Security	12		
13	Period of Validity of Bids	13		
14	Format and Signing of Bid	13		
15	Revelation of Prices	13		
16	Terms and Conditions of Bidders	13		
17	Local Conditions	14		
18	Headings	14		
19	Conditions for Pre-Qualification of Bidders	14		
20	Sealing and Marking of Bids	15		
21	Last Date for Receipt of Bids	15		
22	Late Bids	16		
23	Modification and Withdrawal of Bids			
24	Address for Correspondence	16		
25	Opening of Bids by UIDAI	16		
26	Clarification			
27	Preliminary Examination			
28	·			
29	5			
30	Criteria for Evaluation of Bids			
31	UIDAI's Right to Vary Scope of Contract at the time of Award			
32	UIDAI's Right to Accept Any Bid and to Reject Any or All Bids			
33				
34	Signing of Contract			
35	5 5			
36	·			
37				
	FION III - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT			
1.	Definitions	23		
2.	Application	24		
3.	Standards	24		
4.	Use of Contract Documents and Information	24		

5.	Performance Security	24
6.	Up-gradation of Technology	25
7.	Maintenance and management services	25
8.	Training	25
9.	Period of Contract	25
10.	Payment	26
11.	Currency of Payment	
	Change Orders	
	Contract Amendments	
	Assign ment	
	Sub-contracts	
	Delays in the Vendor's Performance	
	Liquidated Damages	
	Termination for Default	
	Force Majeure	
20.	· ·	
21.	Termination for Convenience	
	Dispute Resolution	
	Governing Language	
	Applicable Law	
24. 25.	Notices	
	Back-up Support	
	Price Fall	
	Prices	
	Deductions	
	Taxes and Duties	
31.		
32.	~~(~)	
	Partial/ Full damage to Hardware	
SECT	ION IV - CONTENTS OF BIDS	33
Ann	nexe 4.1.1	33
Ann	nexe 4.1.2	34
	nexe 4.1.3	
	nexe 4.1.4	
	nexe 4.1.5	
	nexe 4.1.6	
	nexe 4.2.1	
	nexe 4.2.2	
	nexe 4.2.3.	
	nexe 4.2.4	
	ION V - SCOPE OF WORK	
1.	DEFINITIONS	
2.	SCOPE OF WORK	
3.	SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS	49
4.	SERVICES	
SECT	ION VI – APPENDICES	52
Ann	endix A	52

Appendix B	54
Appendix C	
Appendix D	
Appendix E	
Appendix F	

CHECK LIST

Please check whether following have been enclosed in the respective covers, namely, **Pre-Qualification Bid**, **Technical Bid** and **Commercial Bid**:

1. Check List of documents/supporting documents to be enclosed in the Pre-Qualification Bid (please refer to clause 19 of Section II – Instruction to Bidders)

No.		Whether		
		Enclosed (Y/N)		
(i)	Bid Document Fee Demand Draft (in original) in case RFP document is			
	downloaded, else copy of document purchase receipt from UIDAI.			
(ii)	Bid Security (in original) of the prescribed amount and validity pursuant			
	to Clause 12 of Section II			
(iii)	Bidder's Profile in the format prescribed in Appendix C			
(iv)	The bidder should not have been blacklisted / under a declaration of			
	ineligibility for corrupt and fraudulent practices with any of the			
	departments of the Central, State Governments and PSUs. Undertaking			
	from bidder in this regard to be submitted.			
(v)				
(vi)				
(vii)	1 9			
(viii)				
(1.)	<u> </u>			
(1X)				
	•			
	*			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
(x)				
()	` * * *			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
	submit the following:			
	_			
	of the Order.			
	• A certificate in original from the Statutory Auditor / Company			
(vi) (vii) (viii) (ix)	Bidder should have a valid Sales Tax Number/ VAT Number, Service Tax Number, PAN Number and PF code. The Bidder should have at least 100 technical employees on its own roll as on 31st Mar 2015 and shall provide documentation signed by the HR Head or Authorized signatory. Bidder should have ISO Certificate of 9001 or better quality certification. The Bidder should be an Information Technology (IT) Company and should have been in the business of maintenance of the IT Equipments quoted, for the last 5 vears ending 31.03.2015. The Bidder should have average annual turnover of Rs. 1,50,00,00,000/(Rupees One Hundred & Fifty Crores) from supply, installation and maintenance of servers, networking and storage, IT security equipment etc., in India in the last three financial years ended on 31.03.2015. The average turnover refers to the average turnover of the company and not the composite turnover of its subsidiaries/sister concerns, etc. The bidder must submit copy of the Audited Balance Sheets and Profit & Loss Account Statement for last 3 financial years ended on 31.03.2015 along with the bid. However, in the case of non-availability of audited balance sheets, a Certificate from the Statutory Auditor of the Bidder's Company certifying the turnover of the Bidder in the last three financial years would be acceptable. The bidder must have executed at least three (3) purchase orders in India each of the value of at least Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores) from AMC services of IT equipments of similar type in the last 3 financial years ended on 31.03.2015. For each of such order, the bidder should submit the following: • Copy of each such purchase order clearly indicating the value of the Order.			

	Secretary/ Director of the bidder's company indicating and				
	certifying the value of the components AMC of IT equipment.				
	 A copy of certificate from respective customers indicating 				
	satisfactory execution of such order/contract of customer.				
(xi)	The bidder must be a company in India registered under Companies Act				
	1956 and shall provide valid registration certificate of incorporation				
(xii)	The bidder should have local offices setup in Bengaluru and Delhi/NCR.				
	An undertaking from bidder is to be given in this regard.				

<u>Important Note</u>: This list should be duly filled, signed and placed in the cover containing the Pre-qualification Bid cover No. PQ.

2. Check List of Annexure / Appendix to be enclosed in Technical Bid

(i) Section IV comprising of :

Sl	Description	Whether
		Enclosed (Y/N)
(i)	Bid Particulars (Annexe 4.1.1)	
(ii)	Technical Bid Letter (Annexe 4.1.2)	
(iii)	Particulars of equipment (Annexe 4.1.3)	
(iv)	Statement of Deviation(s) from Schedule of Requirements	
	(Annexe 4.1.4)	
(v)	Statement of Deviation(s) from Tender Terms & Conditions	
	(Annexe 4.1.5)	
(vi)	Maintenance Infrastructure Facilities(Annexe 4.1.6)	
(vii)	Un-priced Commercial Bid (please refer to Clause 37.2(a) Section II)	

Important Note:

- a) This list should be duly filled, signed and placed in the cover containing the Prequalification Bid cover No PQ.
- b) The Annexures supporting the above list shall be placed in the cover containing the Technical bid Cover No TQ.

3. Check List of Annexure / Appendix to be enclosed in the Commercial Bid

S.	Description	Whether Enclosed
No.		(Y/N)
(i)	Bid Particulars (Annexe 4.2.1)	
(ii)	Commercial Bid Letter (Annexe 4.2.2)	
(iii)	Summary of Cost of Services offered (Annexe 4.2.3)	
(iv)	Details of Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Costs (Annexe	
	4.2.4)	

Important Note:

- a) This list should be duly filled, signed and placed in the cover containing the Prequalification Bid cover No PQ.
- b) The Annexures supporting the above list shall be placed in the cover containing the Commercial bid Cover No CQ.

SECTION I – Invitation to Bid

This invitation to bid is for "Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Contract (CAMC) of IT Equipments" of Unique Identification Authority of India in Bengaluru and Delhi/NCR.

- Bidders are advised to study the Bid document carefully. Submission of bids shall be deemed to have been done after careful study and examination of the bid document with full understanding of its implications. Sealed offers prepared in accordance with the procedures enumerated in Clause 1 of Section II should be submitted to UIDAI not later than the date and time laid down at the address given in the Schedule for Invitation to Bid under Clause 4.
- All Bids must be accompanied by an EMD (Earnest Money Deposit) / Bid Security of Rs. 40,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Lakhs Only), in the form of Bank Guarantee as mentioned in Appendix F of Section VI.
- **3.** The Bid Document is not transferable.
- 4. Schedule for Invitation to Bid
 - a) Name of the Purchaser:

The President of India acting through the Director General & Mission Director, Unique Identification Authority of India,
Department of Electronics & Information Technology, Govt. of India (GoI),
9th Floor, Tower I, Jeevan Bharati Building,
Connaught Circus,
New Delhi – 110001.

b) Addressee and Address at which bids to be submitted:

The Deputy Director General (Technology)
Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI),
Department of Electronics & Information Technology, Govt. of India (GoI),
9th Floor, Tower I, Jeevan Bharati Building,
Connaught Circus,
New Delhi – 110001.

- c) Latest Time and Date for receipt of bids
 On or before 1500 hours of 28th December, 2015
- d) Place, Time and date of Opening of Pre-Qualification Bids
 Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI),
 Department of Electronics & Information Technology, Govt. of India (GoI),
 Conference Hall, 3rdFloor, Tower II,
 Jeevan Bharati Building,
 Connaught Circus,
 New Delhi 110001.
 At 1500 hours of 28th December, 2015

e) Place, Time and date of Pre-Bid Meeting

Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI),

Department of Electronics & Information Technology, Govt. of India (GoI),

Conference Hall, 3rdFloor, Tower II,

Jeevan Bharati Building,

Connaught Circus,

New Delhi - 110001.

At 1400 hours of 15th December, 2015

f) Name of the Contact Person for any clarification:

Shri Saibal Sen,

Section Officer (Tech),

Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI),

Queries should be submitted via E-mail and followed by paper copy by post

E-mail - sotech@uidai.gov.in

g) Date till which the response to the bid should be valid:

180 days from the date of opening of Pre-Qualification Bids.

h) Important Dates:

The following table provides information regarding the important dates of the Bid process for this Bid:

SI	Activity	Date
a)	Release / Issue of Bid Document	04 Dec 2015
b)	Pre-Bid Meeting (Venue:- Conference Hall, 3 rd	15 Dec 2015 at 1400 hrs
	Floor, Tower II, UIDAI Hqr)	
c)	Last date for submission of written queries for	16 Dec 2015 before 1600 hrs
	clarifications on Bid document	
d)	Last date for reply to written queries of prospective	17 Dec 2015
	Bidders	
e)	Last date of submission of Bids	28 Dec 2015 on or
		before1500 hrs
f)	Opening of Pre-Qualification Bids	28 Dec 2015 at 1500 hrs
g)	Opening of Technical Bids	31 Dec 2015 at 1500 hrs
h)	Opening of Financial Bids	Date will be communicated
		later

5. The Bidder is required to pay Rs.1,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Only) towards Bid Document Fee, at the time of submission of Bids, in the form of a Bank Demand Draft failing which the Bids submitted by the Bidder shall not be entertained and shall be summarily rejected. The Bank Demand Draft should be drawn on a Scheduled Bank in favor of "PAO, UIDAI" and payable at New Delhi. The Bid Document Fee is non-refundable.

Note: The Purchaser shall not be responsible for non-receipt / non-delivery of the Bid documents due to any reason whatsoever.

SECTION II- Instruction to Bidders

1. Procedure for Submission of Bids

1.1 It is proposed to have a Three Cover System for this Bid process.

a) Pre-Qualification Bid (2 copies) in one cover No PQ (please refer to Clause 7.1

(a)).

b) Technical Bid (2 copies) in one cover No TQ.c) Commercial Bid (2 copies) in one cover No CQ.

- 1.2 Each copy of Pre-Qualification Bid, Technical Bid and Commercial Bid of the Bidder should be put in separate sealed Covers super scribing the wordings "Pre-Qualification Bid (PQ)", "Technical Bid (TQ)" and "Commercial Bid (CQ)" respectively. Each Copy in each bid should also be marked as "Original" and "First copy". Both the copies of each bid should be put in a single sealed cover super scribing the wordings "Pre-Qualification Bid", "Technical Bid" and "Commercial Bid" as the case may be. Please Note that Prices **should not** be indicated in the Pre-Qualification and Technical Bid and should **only be** indicated in the Commercial Bid.
- 1.3 The cover containing two copies of Pre-qualification Bid, cover containing two copies of Technical Bid and the cover containing two copies of Commercial Bid should be put in another envelope and this envelope should be clearly marked "Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Contract (CAMC) of IT Equipments". The Bid Covers are to be kept in a single sealed cover super-scribed with Bid Number, Due Date, and the wordings "DO NOT OPEN BEFORE 1500 hours on 28th December, 2015".
- 1.4 The cover thus prepared should also indicate clearly the name, address and telephone number of the Bidder, to enable the Bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared "Late".
- 1.5 Each copy of the Bid should be a complete document and should be bound as a volume. The document should be page numbered and appropriately flagged and contain the list of contents with page numbers. Different copies must be bound separately. The deficiency in documentation may result in the rejection of the Bid. Each page should be signed by authorized signatory of Bidder.
- 1.6 The Bidder should also provide the technical and commercial bids in soft copy, in the form of a non-rewriteable CD (Compact Disc).
 - Two copies of CD containing the technical bid
 - Two copies of CD containing the commercial bid
- 1.7 The CD's would be sealed along with the hard copies of the respective technical and commercial bids. In case of any discrepancy in the contents of the documents, the information furnished on original paper document will prevail over the soft copy.

2 Cost of Bid Document

2.1 The Bidder is required to pay **Rs.1,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Only)** towards Bid Document Fee, at the time of submission of Bids, in the form of a Bank Demand Draft **failing which the**

- Bids submitted by the Bidder shall not be entertained and shall be summarily rejected. The Bank Demand Draft should be drawn on a Scheduled Bank in favor of "PAO, UIDAI" and payable at New Delhi. The Bid Document Fee is non-refundable.
- 2.2 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bids, including cost of presentation for the purposes of clarification of the bids, if so desired by the UIDAI. The UIDAI will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Bidding process.

3 Contents of the Bid Document

- 3.1 The Schedule of Requirements of the Services required, Bid procedures and contract terms are prescribed in the Bid Document. In addition to the **Pre-Qualification Bid** and **Section I Invitation to Bid**, the Bid Document includes:
 - a. **Section II** Instructions to Bidders;
 - b. **Section III-** General Conditions of Contract;
 - c. Section IV Contents of the Bid
 - (i) Technical Bid
 - (ii) Commercial Bid
 - d. Section V- Scope of Work and Schedule of Requirements
 - e. **Section VI-** Appendices
 - (i) Contract Form (**Appendix A**)
 - (ii) Proforma of Bank Guarantee for Contract Performance Security (Appendix B)
 - (iii) Bidder's Profile (Appendix C)
 - (iv) List of Locations of UIDAI (**Appendix D**)
 - (v) Statement of Undertaking From OEM (**Appendix E**)
 - (vi) Proforma of Bank Guarantee for EMD (Appendix F)
- 3.2 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, general terms & conditions, and Schedule of requirements in the Bid Document. Failure to furnish all information required by the Bid Document or submission of a bid not substantially responsive to the Bid Document in every respect will be at the Bidder's risk and may result in the rejection of the Bid.

4 Clarification of Bid Document

4.1 A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bid Document may notify the UIDAI in writing at the UIDAI's mail address indicated in Clause 4 of Section I. The queries must be submitted in **Microsoft Excel (Hard copy and Soft copy)** format as follows:

Sr. No	Section No.	Clause No.	Page number in Section	Existing Provision in	Clarification
				the Clause	Sought

4.2 The UIDAI will respond in writing, to any request for clarification of the Bid Document, received not later than the date prescribed by the UIDAI in Section I, Clause 4(c) of this Bid document. Written copies of the UIDAI's response (including an explanation of the query but without identifying the source of Inquiry) will be sent to all prospective Bidders who have received the Bid Document. UIDAI's response to clarifications will also be uploaded on the Website of UIDAI.

5 Amendment of Bid Document

- 5.1 At any time prior to the last time and date for receipt of bids, the UIDAI, may, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective Bidder, modify the Bid Document by an amendment.
- 5.2 The amendment will be published in UIDAI website.
- 5.3 In order to provide prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in preparing their bids, the UIDAI may, at its discretion, extend the last date for the receipt of Bids.

6 Language of Bids

6.1 The Bids prepared by the Bidder and all correspondence and documents relating to the bids exchanged by the Bidder and the UIDAI, shall be written in the English language, provided that any printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be written in another language so long the same is accompanied by an English translation in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the bid, the English translation shall govern.

7 Documents Comprising the Bids

- 7.1 The Bids prepared by the Bidder shall comprise of the following components (refer Clause 20 of Section II):
- a) Pre-Qualification Bid (please refer to Clause 19 of Section II) in separate sealed cover.
- b) The Technical Bid should comprise of the following (Refer Section IV and V):

S. No.	Description	
(i)	Bid Particulars (Annexe 4.1.1)	
(ii)	Technical Bid Letter (Annexe 4.1.2)	
(iii)	Particulars of Equipments (Annexe 4.1.3)	
(iv)	Statement of Deviation(s) from Schedule of Requirements(Annexe 4.1.4)	
(v)	Statement of Deviation(s) from Tender Terms & Conditions(Annexe 4.1.5)	
(vi)	Un-priced Commercial Bid (please refer to Clause 37.2(a) Section II)	

c) The Commercial Bid should comprise of the following (Refer Section IV):

S. NO.	CONTENTS	
1.	Bid Particulars (Annexe 4.2.1)	
2.	Commercial Bid Letter (Annexe 4.2.2)	
3.	Summary of Cost of Services offered (Annexe 4.2.3)	
4.	Details of Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Costs	
	(Annexe 4.2.4)	

8 Bid Prices

- 8.1 The Bidder shall indicate in the proforma prescribed at **Annexe 4.2.3** & **Annexe 4.2.4** of **Section IV**, the unit prices and total Bid Prices of the Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Services of IT equipments, it proposes to provide under the Contract.
- 8.2 The unit prices quoted in the above mentioned proforma will be used to calculate charges for 'change orders', if any.
- 8.3 In the absence of the above information, as requested in Clause 8.1 and 8.2, a bid may be considered incomplete and summarily rejected.
- 8.4 The Bidder shall prepare the bid based on details provided in the Bid documents. Bidder shall carry out the detailed study of the facilities in accordance with the requirements of the Bid document and it shall be the responsibility of the Bidder to fully meet all the requirements of the Bid document. If during a detailed study any upward revisions of the specifications and sizes given in the Bid document are to be made to meet the requirements of Bid document, all such changes shall be carried out within the lump sum contract price without any impact to the UIDAI.

9 Firm Prices

- 9.1 Prices quoted must be firm and final and shall not be subject to any upward modifications, on any account whatsoever. The Bidder shall, therefore, indicate the prices in **Annexe 4.2.3 & Annexe 4.2.4 of Section IV** enclosed with the Bid. The Bid Prices shall be indicated in Indian Rupees (INR) only.
- 9.2 The Commercial bid should clearly indicate the price to be charged without any qualifications whatsoever and should include all taxes, duties, fees, levies, works contract tax and other charges as may be applicable in relation to the activities proposed to be carried out. Such charges should be shown separately in **Annexe 4.2.3 & Annexe 4.2.4 of Section IV**.

10 Discount

10.1 The Bidders are advised not to indicate any separate discount. Unconditional Discounts, if any, should be merged with the quoted prices. Discount of such type, indicated separately, will not be taken into account for evaluation purpose. However, in the event of such an offer, without considering discount, is found to be the lowest, the UIDAI shall avail such discount at the time of award of contract

11 Bidder Qualification

- 11.1 The "Bidder" as used in the Bid documents shall mean the one who has signed the Bids. The Bidder may be either the Constituted attorney of the company or the Principal Officer or his duly Authorized Representative, in which case he/she shall submit a certificate of authority. All certificates and documents (including any clarifications sought and any subsequent correspondences) received hereby, shall, be furnished and signed by the Bidder.
- 11.2 It is further clarified that the individual signing the Bid or other documents in connection with the Bid must certify whether he/she signs as:

a) Constituted attorney of the company.

OR

b) The Principal Officer or his duly Authorized Representative of the company, in which case he/she shall submit a certificate of authority on behalf of the company.

The Bidder shall sign its Bids with the exact name of the Company to whom the contract is to be issued. The Bids shall be duly signed and sealed by an executive officer of the Bidder's organization. Each bid shall be signed by a duly authorized officer executed under seal.

The Bidder shall clearly indicate their legal constitution and the person signing the Bids shall state his capacity and also source of his ability to bind the Bidder.

The power or authorization, or any other document consisting of adequate proof of the ability of the signatory to bind the Bidder shall be annexed to the bid. UIDAI may out rightly reject any bid not supported by adequate proof of the signatory's authority

12 Bid Security

- 12.1 Pursuant to Clause 19.1(ii), the Bidder shall furnish, as part of its bid, a bid security of the amount mentioned in Clause 2 of Section I.
- 12.2 The bid security is required to protect the UIDAI against the risk of Bidder's conduct which would warrant the security's forfeiture, pursuant to Clause 12.7.
- 12.3 The bid security shall be denominated in Indian Rupees, and shall be in the form of a Bank Guarantee issued by a Scheduled Bank, in the proforma provided at **Appendix B of Section VI** in the Bid Document and shall be valid for 45 days beyond the validity of the Bid.
- 12.4 Bidders who are Government Departments and Central Public Sector Undertakings are exempted from furnishing of bid security. Any bid not secured in accordance with Clauses 12.1 and 12.3 will be rejected by the UIDAI as non-responsive.
- 12.5 Unsuccessful Bidder's bid security will be discharged/ returned as promptly as possible but not later than 30 days after award of contract to the selected bidder.
- 12.6 The successful Bidder's bid security will be discharged upon the Bidder executing the Contract, pursuant to Clause 34 and furnishing the performance security, pursuant to Clause 35.
- 12.7 The bid security may be forfeited:
 - a) If a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Bid; or
 - b) In the case of a successful Bidder, if the Bidder fails:
 - (i) to sign the Contract in accordance with Clause 34;
 - (ii) to furnish performance security in accordance with Clause 35.

13 Period of Validity of Bids

- Bids shall remain valid for 180 days after the last date of submission of bids prescribed by the UIDAI. A bid valid for a shorter period may be rejected by the UIDAI as non-responsive.
- 13.2 In exceptional circumstances, the UIDAI may ask the Bidder to extend the validity of the Bid. The validity of bid security provided under Clause 12 shall also be suitably extended. However, A Bidder will not be permitted to modify its bid.

14 Format and Signing of Bid

- 14.1 The Bidder shall prepare two copies of each Bid, clearly marking each "**Original**", and "**First Copy**" as appropriate in accordance with Clause 1. In the event of any discrepancy between them, the original shall govern.
- 14.2 The original and first copy of the bid shall be typed. The original and first copy shall be signed by the Bidder or a person or persons duly authorized to bind the Bidder to the Contract in accordance with Clause 11. The authorization shall be indicated by written power-of-attorney accompanying the bid. All pages of the bid, including un-amended printed literature, shall be initialed and stamped by the person or persons signing the bid.
- 14.3 The bid shall contain no interlineations, erasures or overwriting except as necessary to correct errors made by the Bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the bid.

15 Revelation of Prices

Prices in any form or by any reason before opening the Commercial Bid should not be revealed, failing which the offer shall be liable to be **rejected**.

16 Terms and Conditions of Bidders

- 16.1 Printed terms and conditions (General Conditions) of the Bidders will not be considered as forming part of their Bids. In case terms and conditions of the contract applicable to this Invitation of Bid are not acceptable to any Bidder, he should clearly specify deviation in his Technical Bid (Annexe 4.1.5 of Section IV).
- 16.2 Similarly in case the Services being offered have deviations from the specifications laid down in Section V Schedule of Requirements, the Bidder shall describe in what respects and to what extent the Services being offered differ/deviate from the specifications, even though the deviations may not be very material. The Bidder must state categorically whether or not his offer conforms to Bid specifications as indicated in Section V Schedule of Requirements and indicate deviations, if any, in his Technical Bid (Annexe 4.1.4 of Section IV).
- 16.3 The Bidder should note, that, in case any of the deviation (s) or assumption (s), indicated by the Bidder in its Technical Bid in Annexe 4.1.4 or Annexe 4.1.5, is/are not acceptable to the

Purchaser, in such eventuality the Bidder shall have to withdraw such deviation (s)/assumption(s) failing which the Bid(s) of the Bidder shall be liable to be rejected.

17 Local Conditions

- 17.1 It will be imperative on each Bidder to fully acquaint himself with the local conditions and factors, which would have any effect on the performance of the contract and / or the cost.
- 17.2 It will be imperative for each Bidder to fully inform themselves of all legal conditions and factors which may have any effect on the execution of the contract as described in the bidding documents. The UIDAI shall not entertain any request for clarification from the Bidder regarding such local conditions
- 17.3 It is the responsibility of the Bidder that such factors have properly been investigated and considered while submitting the bid proposals and that no claim whatsoever including those for financial adjustment to the contract awarded under the bidding documents will be entertained by the UIDAI and that neither any change in the time schedule of the contract nor any financial adjustments arising thereof shall be permitted by the UIDAI on account of failure of the Bidder to appraise themselves of local laws /condition.

18 Headings

18.1 Headings of conditions hereto shall not affect the construction thereof.

19 Conditions for Pre-Qualification of Bidders

- 19.1 For the purpose of pre-qualification of Bidders, the Bidder should enclose in their Pre-Qualification Bid (to be submitted in a separate sealed cover), statement of qualification on following parameters, duly supported by necessary documentary evidences, as applicable:
- (i) Bid Document Fee Demand Draft (in original) in case RFP document is downloaded, else copy of document purchase receipt from UIDAI.
- (ii) Bid Security (in original) of the prescribed amount and validity pursuant to Clause 12.
- (iii) Bidder's Profile in the format prescribed in **Appendix C.**
- (iv) The bidder should not be blacklisted / under a declaration of ineligibility for corrupt and fraudulent practices with any of the departments of the Central, State Governments and PSUs. Undertaking from bidder in this regard to be submitted.
- (v) Bidder should have a valid Sales Tax Number/ VAT Number, Service Tax Number, PAN Number and PF code.
- (vi) The Bidder should have at least **100** technical employees on its own roll as on 31st Mar 2015 and shall provide documentation signed by the HR Head or Authorized signatory.

- (vii) The Bidder should be IT Company and should have been in the business of maintenance of the IT Equipments quoted in this bid, for the last <u>5 years</u> ending 31.03.2015.
- (viii) The Bidder should have average annual turnover of **Rs. 1,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred & Fifty Crores)** from supply, installation and AMC of servers, networking, storage and IT security products, in India in the last three financial years ended on 31.03.2015. The average turnover refers to the average turnover of the company and not the composite turnover of its subsidiaries/sister concerns etc. The Bidder must submit copy of the Audited Balance Sheets and Profit & Loss Account Statement for the last 3 financial years ended on 31.03.2015 along with the bid. However, in the case of non-availability of audited balance sheets, a Certificate from the Statutory Auditor/Chartered Accountant of the Bidder's Company certifying the turnover of the Bidder in the last three financial years would be acceptable.
- (ix) The bidder must have executed at least three (3) purchase orders in India each of the value of at least Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores) from AMC services of servers, networking, storage and IT security products in the last 3 financial years ended on 31.03.2015. For each of such orders, the Bidder should submit the following:-
 - Copy of each such Purchase Order clearly indicating the total value of the Order.
 - A copy of the certificate from respective customers indicating satisfactory execution of such order/contract from the respective customer.
- (x) The bidder must be a company in India registered under Companies Act 1956 and shall provide valid registration certificate of incorporation.
- (xi) The Bidder should have local offices setup in Bengaluru and Delhi/ NCR. Self declaration of bidder is to be submitted.

20 Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 20.1 The Bidders shall seal and mark the original and each copy of the Bid strictly in accordance with Clause 1.
- 20.2 If the outer cover of the bid is not sealed and marked as required by Clause 1, the UIDAI will assume no responsibility for the bid's misplacement or premature opening.

21 Last Date for Receipt of Bids

- 21.1 Bids will be received by the UIDAI at the address specified under Clause 4(b) of Section I not later than the time and date specified in **Clause 4(c) of Section I**. In the event of the specified date for the receipt of Bids being declared a holiday for the UIDAI, the Bids will be received upto the appointed time on the next working day.
- 21.2 The UIDAI may, at its discretion, extend the last date for the receipt of bids by amending the Bid Document in accordance with Clause 5, in which case all rights and obligations of the UIDAI and Bidders previously subject to the last date will thereafter be subject to the last date as extended.

22 Late Bids

Any bid received by the UIDAI after the last date and time for receipt of bids prescribed by the UIDAI, pursuant to Clause 4(c) Section I, will be rejected and/or returned unopened to the Bidder.

23 Modification and Withdrawal of Bids

- 23.1 The Bidder may modify or withdraw its bid after the Bids' submission (but not later than the last date of submission), provided that written notice of the modification or withdrawal is received by the UIDAI prior to the last date prescribed for receipt of bids.
- 23.2 The Bidder's modification or withdrawal notice shall be prepared, sealed, marked and submitted in accordance with the provisions of Clause 1. A withdrawal notice may also be sent by email but followed by a signed confirmation copy, post marked not later than the last date for receipt of bids.
- 23.3 No bid may be modified subsequent to the last date for receipt of bids.
- 23.4 No bid may be withdrawn in the interval between the last date for receipt of bids and the expiry of the bid validity period specified by the Bidder in the Bid. Withdrawal of a bid during this interval shall result in the Bidder's forfeiture of its bid security.

24 Address for Correspondence

24.1 The Bidder shall designate the official mailing address, place, and email to which all correspondence shall be sent by the UIDAI.

25 Opening of Bids by UIDAI

- 25.1 On the basis of information furnished in the Pre-Qualification Bid, pursuant to Clause 19, Bidders will be pre-qualified. The bids of Bidders, who do not qualify at this stage, will not be taken up for further evaluation, and the sealed Technical and Commercial Bids of such Bidders will be returned unopened immediately.
- 25.2 Bids of only pre-qualified Bidders will be taken up for further evaluation.
- 25.3 The UIDAI will open the Bids, in the presence of the representatives of the Bidders who choose to attend, at the time, date and place, as mentioned in Clause 4 of Section I of this Document.
- 25.4 The Bidders' names, modifications, bid withdrawals and the presence or absence of the requisite Bid Security and such other details as the UIDAI, at its discretion, may consider appropriate will be announced at the bid opening.

26 Clarification

When deemed necessary, the UIDAI may seek clarifications on any aspect from the Bidder. However, that would not entitle the Bidder to change or cause any change in the substance of the Bid submitted or price quoted.

27 Preliminary Examination

- 27.1 The UIDAI will examine the bids to determine whether they are complete, whether any computational errors have been made, whether required bid security has been furnished, whether the documents have been properly signed, and whether the bids are generally in order.
- Arithmetical errors will be rectified on the following basis. If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected. If the Bidder does not accept the correction of the errors, its bid will be rejected. If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words will prevail.
- A bid determined as not substantially responsive will be rejected by the UIDAI and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the nonconformity.
- 27.4 The UIDAI may waive any minor informality or nonconformity or irregularity in a bid which does not constitute a material deviation, provided such waiver does not prejudice or affect the relative ranking of any Bidder.

28 Contacting the UIDAI

- 28.1 No Bidder shall contact the UIDAI on any matter relating to its Bid, from the time of the Bid opening to the time the Contract is awarded.
- Any effort by a Bidder to influence the UIDAI's Bid evaluation, Bid comparison or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidder's Bid.

29 Post Qualification

- 29.1 The UIDAI will determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder selected as having submitted the best evaluated responsive bid is qualified to satisfactorily perform the Contract.
- 29.2 This determination will take into account the Bidder's financial, technical services capabilities. It will be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence submitted by the Bidder as per **Appendix C** as well as such other information as the UIDAI deems necessary and appropriate.
- 29.3 An affirmative determination will be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination will result in rejection of the Bidder's bid, in which event the UIDAI will proceed to the next best evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's capabilities to perform satisfactorily.

30 Criteria for Evaluation of Bids

30.1 To meet the UIDAI's requirements, as spelt out in the Bid Document, the selected Bidder must have the requisite experience for comprehensive annual maintenance services of IT equipments sought by the UIDAI. QCBS (Quality Cum Cost Based Selection) method will be adopted for selection of most responsive bidder. The weight associated with quality i.e. technical score is considered 50% and weight associated with cost i.e. financial score is 50%. The purpose of Clause 30 is only to provide the Bidders an idea of the evaluation process that the UIDAI may adopt. The UIDAI reserves the right to modify the evaluation process at any time during the Bid process, without assigning any reason, whatsoever, and without any requirement of intimating the Bidders of any such change. Any time during the process of evaluation the UIDAI may seek specific clarifications from any or all Bidders.

30.2 Phase I: Evaluation of Technical Bids

Detailed analysis of the Technical bid will be carried out by the UIDAI. In this phase, the Technical Bids will be reviewed for compliance of the Bid requirements with reference to the responses to the technical requirements given in **Section IV** and also, marks will be awarded on the basis of below criteria

	D . 6					
Sl	Criteria	Basis for valuation	Max marks	Supporting documents		
Cor	npany Profile	, araution				
1	Average Annual Turnover from IT Services (supply of Servers, desktop, Storage, networking equipment, IT Security product, Software and maintenance services of IT equipment) in last 3 years till 31.03.2015. (Turnover in Rs Crores)	> 1000 : 25 marks 501 - 1000: 20 marks 301 - 500 : 15 marks 150 - 300 : 10 marks	25	Extracts from the audited Balance sheet and Profit & Loss, or Certificate from the Statutory Auditor		
Rel	evant Strength					
2	Number of Orders of AMC Services each having value of at least 5 Cr. executed in last 3 financial years till 31.03.2015.	> 10 : 25 marks 7 - 10 : 20 marks 3 - 6 : 15 marks	25	Completion certificate from the client mentioning order value; OR Work order +self-certificate of completion certified by Statutory auditor OR Work order + phase completion certificate for ongoing projects either from client or certified by Statutory Auditor		

3	Total value of orders for supply, installation and maintenance of IT equipment (server, storage, networking, desktop, IT security product, software) executed, during the last 3 financial years till 31.03.2015. (Value in Rs Crores)	> 50 : 25 marks 31 - 50 : 20 marks 15 - 30 : 15 marks	25	Completion certificate from the client mentioning order value; OR Work order +self-certificate of completion certified by Statutory auditor OR Work order + phase completion certificate for ongoing projects either from client or certified by Statutory Auditor
4	Number of years of experience with minimum work order of Rs. 5 crores for maintenance of IT equipment	> 10 : 25 marks 8 - 10 : 20 marks 5 - 7 : 15 marks	25	Self-certificate of experiences certified by Statutory auditor

Minimum qualifying score is 60% of total maximum score to open financial bid,

30.3 Phase II: Evaluation of Commercial Bids

In this phase, the Commercial Bids of the Bidders, who scores at least 60% of total max technical score in technical evaluation, shall be opened. The Commercial Bid should contain the total cost.

- 30.4 Subject to Clause 30, the UIDAI will award the Contract to the most responsive bidders, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily. The UIDAI will however not bind itself to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any bid and reserves the right to accept any bid, wholly or in-part. The tender will be evaluated as a package of all the items and the periods as mentioned in Commercial Bid (Annexure 4.2.4 of Section IV).
- 30.5 UIDAI reserves the right to ask the bidder to validate any technical parameter in a laboratory environment at the time of evaluation of the Technical bid, at the cost of the bidder.
- 30. 6 Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Costs of IT Equipments (as per details in **Annexure 4.2.4**) shall be taken into account for the purpose of evaluation of Commercial Bids.
- 30.7 Commercial bids that are less than 50% of the average bid price will be disqualified the average bid price is computed by adding all commercial values of all qualified bidders and diving the same by the number of bidders.
- 30.8 The bidder with lowest qualifying commercial bid (L1) will be awarded 100% score (amongst the bidders which did not disqualified on the basis of clause 30.7 above). Financial scores for other than L1 bidders will be evaluated as below:-

Financial score of a bidder (Fn) = $\{(Commercial Bid of L1 / commercial bid of the bidder)*100\}\%$ (adjusted with 2 decimal places)

Weightage for Technical and Commercial proposals – Technical (Tn) = 50% Commercial (Fn) = 50%

Bn = 0.5*Tn + 0.5*Fn

Bn = overall score

Tn = Technical score of bidder

Fn = Normalized financial score, The bidder with lowest quote (L1) will be given 100% score. Financial scores for other bidders will be evaluated as below:-

Fn = {(Commercial Bid of L1 /commercial bid of the bidder)*100}%

The award will be given to most responsive bidder i.e. highest scorer (highest Bn).

31 UIDAI's Right to Vary Scope of Contract at the time of Award

- 31.1 The UIDAI may at any time, by a written order given to the Bidder pursuant to Clause 12 of Section III General Conditions of Contract, make changes within the general scope of the Contract. Accordingly, the UIDAI reserves the right to place repeat order(s) within the Contract Period, of upto 50% of the Contract value.
- The UIDAI shall reserve the right, **not to purchase** all the CAMC Services of IT Equipments. UIDAI shall also reserve the right to place the order phase wise.

32 UIDAI's Right to Accept Any Bid and to Reject Any or All Bids

32.1 The UIDAI reserves the right to accept any bid, and to annul the Bid process and reject all bids at any time prior to award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or Bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or Bidders of the grounds for the UIDAI's action.

33 Notification of Award

- Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the UIDAI will notify the successful Bidder in writing by registered letter or by fax or email, to be confirmed in writing by registered letter, that its bid has been accepted.
- 33.2 The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract.
- 33.3 Upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of performance security pursuant to Clause 35, the UIDAI will promptly notify each unsuccessful Bidder and will discharge its bid security, pursuant to Clause 12.

34 Signing of Contract

- 34.1 At the same time as the UIDAI notifies the successful Bidder that its bid has been accepted, the UIDAI will send the Bidder the Contract Form (**Appendix A of Section VI** provided in the Bid Document, incorporating all agreements between the parties).
- 34.2 Within **15 days** of receipt of the Contract Form, the successful Bidder shall sign and date the Contract and return it to the UIDAI.

35 Performance Security

- 35.1 Within **10 days** of the receipt of notification of award from the UIDAI, the successful Bidder shall furnish the performance security in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, in the Contract Performance Guarantee Bond prescribed at **Appendix B of Section VI**.
- 35.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirement of Clause 35 or Clause 36 shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security, in which event the UIDAI may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder or call for new bids.

36 Confidentiality of the Document

- 36.1 This Bid Document is confidential and the Bidder is required to furnish an undertaking that anything contained in this Bid Document shall not be disclosed in any manner.
- 36.2 Except with the written consent of the purchaser, the bidder shall not make use of any information supplied by the purchaser for purposes of the bidder or any specifications or other details mentioned in above clause otherwise than for the purpose of manufacturing the articles and the bidder shall not use any such information to make any similar article or part thereof for any other purpose.

37 Rejection Criteria

37.1 Technical Rejection Criteria

The following vital technical conditions should be strictly complied with failing which the bid will be rejected:

- The Bidder shall be deemed to have complied with all clauses in the Bid document under all the sections/chapters of the Bidding document, including Bid Evaluation Criteria (BEC), Schedule of Requirements, and General Terms and Conditions of Contract unless otherwise stated in the deviation statement. Evaluation will be carried out on the information available in the bid.
- If the information provided by the Bidder is found to be incorrect / misleading at any stage / time during the Bidding Process.

37.2 Commercial Rejection Criteria

The following vital commercial conditions should be strictly complied with failing which the bid will be rejected.

a. Bid should be submitted in Three Bid systems in three separate envelopes. The Pre-Qualification Bid and Technical Bid shall contain no prices or commercial bid details. However a blank copy of the commercial bid should be enclosed with the Technical Bid with the price column of the price bid format blanked out. A tick mark $(\sqrt{})$ shall be provided against each item of the price bid

format to indicate that there is a quote against this item in the Commercial bid. Offers with Pre-Qualification Bid or Technical Bid containing prices shall be rejected outright.

- b. Offers of following kinds will be rejected:
 - i. Offers made without Bid Security/Bid Bond/Bank Guarantee along with the offer
 - ii. Email
 - iii. Offers which do not confirm unconditional validity of the bid for 180 days from the date of opening of bid.
 - iv. Offers where prices are not firm during the entire duration of the contract and / or with any qualifications.
 - v. Offers which do not conform to UIDAI's price bid format.
 - vi. Any other criteria which UIDAI seems fit to reject.
- c. Total lump sum price quoted by the Bidder must be inclusive of all taxes including excise duty and sales tax etc.
- d. Bidder shall bear, within the quoted rates, all the taxes and duties as levied on them including the Personnel Tax as applicable in respect of their personnel and their sub-contractor's personnel, arising out of this contract. Bidder shall also bear, within the quoted rates, the Corporate Tax, as applicable, on the income arising out of this contract.

SECTION III - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

1. **Definitions**

- 1.1 In this Contract, the following terms shall be interpreted as indicated:
 - i. "UIDAI" means the Unique Identification Authority of India.
 - ii. "The Purchaser" means the President of India acting through the Director General & Mission Director, Unique Identification Authority of India or any other representative authorized by the Director General, Unique Identification Authority of India.
 - iii. "Purchase Officer" means the officer signing the acceptance of Bid and includes any officer who has authority to execute the relevant contract on behalf of the Purchaser.
 - iv. The "Contract" means the agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Vendor as recorded in the Contract Form signed by the Purchaser and the Vendor, including all attachments and annexes thereto and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
 - v. The **"Vendor"** means the person or the firm or the company with whom the order of comprehensive annual maintenance services is placed.
 - vi. "The Contract Price" means the price payable to the Vendor under the Contract for the full and proper performance of its contractual obligations;
 - vii. "Service" means comprehensive annual maintenance of IT equipments;
 - viii. "Acceptance of Bid" means the letter/or email any memorandum communicating to the selected Bidder the acceptance of his Bid and includes an advance acceptance of his Bid.

2. Application

These General Conditions shall apply to the extent that they are not superseded by provisions in other parts of the Contract.

3. Standards

- 3.1 The Vendor shall ensure that the CAMC Services provided as per the Contract against all purchase orders should be without any additional cost to the Purchaser.
- 3.2 CAMC Services will cover all product updates and patches. The Vendor shall undertake regular preventive maintenance of the licensed software.

4. Use of Contract Documents and Information

- 4.1 The Vendor shall not, without the Purchaser's prior written consent, disclose the Contract, or any provision thereof, or any specification, plan, drawing, pattern, sample or information furnished by or on behalf of the Purchaser in connection therewith, to any person other than a person employed by the Vendor in the Performance of the Contract. Disclosure to any such employed person shall be made in confidence and shall extend only so far as may be necessary for purposes of such performance.
- 4.2 The Vendor shall not, without the Purchaser's prior written consent, make use of any document of information enumerated in **Clause 3 of Section II** except for purposes of performing the Contract.
- 4.3 Any document, other than the Contract itself, enumerated in **Clause 3 of Section II** shall remain the property of the Purchaser and shall be returned (in all copies) to the Purchaser on completion of the Vendor's performance under the Contract, if so required by the Purchaser.

5. Performance Security

- 5.1 Within **10 days** after the receipt of notification of award of the Contract from the Purchaser, the successful Vendor shall furnish performance security to the Purchaser, which shall be equal to **10 percent (Ten Percent)** of the value of the contract in the form of a bank guarantee bond from a scheduled bank.
- 5.2 The Performance Security Bank Guarantee shall be released on completion of the **Contractual Obligations**.
- 5.3 The performance security should remain valid for a period of 60 days beyond the date of completion of all contractual obligations of Vendor.

6. Up-gradation of Technology

The Vendor shall be responsible for any upgrades/patches at the destination sites including configuration for making them fully operational.

7. Maintenance and management services

- 7.1 The Vendor will be required to provide comprehensive (including spare parts, labor etc.) comprehensive annual maintenance services of IT equipments.
- 7.2 Vendor will be required to do performance, supervision, maintenance and repair of the equipments, for Contract Period agreed by the Purchaser and the Vendor, provided that this service shall not relieve the Vendor of any AMC obligations under this Contract.
- 7.3 Vendor will also take care of any Operational Support required by the applications running and added, from time to time.
- 7.4 Vendor will maintain all records for updates, patches, replacements and maintenance.
- 7.5 Vendor should provide services for the equipments (SI no 1 to SI no 29 of Annexe 4.1.3 of Section IV) through OEM.
- 7.6 Vendor will also be required to coordinate with the OEM for the patch updates or any other related issues.
- 7.7 Provision of **1(one) Resident Engineer/Technician** at each locations on a 24x7 basis for maintenance support for the duration of Contract Period.
- 7.8 Other obligations of the Vendor covered under the Contract.

8. Training

The user training, if required by UIDAI, to be provided by the vendor/ successful Bidder without any additional cost.

9. Period of Contract

9.1 Period of Contract

- 9.1.1 This contract for comprehensive onsite annual maintenance service on 24 x 7 basis will be valid for a period of one year. The Contract Period will be extendable up to further one year on same terms and conditions of the contract at the sole discretion of the Purchaser.
- 9.1.2 Start date for equipments to be made part of CAMC will vary as per the AMC start dates mentioned in **Annexe 4.1.3**.

9.1.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of **Clauses 18, 19, 20 and 21**, the period of Contract shall be valid subject to the satisfaction of the Purchaser.

10. Payment

- 10.1 The payment would be made on quarterly basis after completion of each quarter after the receipt of invoice and on satisfactory completion of maintenance.
- Any increase / decrease of the inventory during the period of contract, the consideration may be billed accordingly as per the agreed rate in this contract.

11. Currency of Payment

11.1 Payment shall be made in Indian Rupees only.

12. Change Orders

- 12.1 The Purchaser may at any time, by a written order given to the Vendor pursuant to Clause 25, make changes within the general scope of the Contract to increase/ decrease quantities of services etc.
- 12.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Vendor's performance of any part of the work under the Contract, whether changed or not changed by the order, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or delivery schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Vendor for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within **thirty(30) days** from the date of the Vendor's receipt of the Purchaser's change order.

13. Contract Amendments

Subject to **Clause 15**, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.

14. Assignment

The Vendor shall not assign, in whole or in part, its obligations to perform under the Contract, except with the Purchaser's prior written consent. The permission, if any, of the purchaser has to be taken within 15 days of award of the contract.

15. Sub-contracts

The Vendor shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in his bid. Such notification, in his original bid or later, shall not relieve the Vendor from any liability or obligation under the Contract.

16. Delays in the Vendor's Performance

- 16.1 An un-excused delay by the Vendor in the performance of its delivery obligations shall render the Vendor liable to any or all of the following sanctions: forfeiture of its performance security, imposition of liquidated damages, and/or termination of the Contract for default.
- 16.2 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Vendor or its sub-contractor(s) should encounter conditions impeding performance of services, the Vendor shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the fact of the delay, it's likely duration and its cause(s). As soon as practicable after receipt of the Vendor's notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Vendor's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract. If the vendor request to the performance of services is not found acceptable to the purchaser, **Clause 16.1** would be invoked.

17. Liquidated Damages

- 17.1 Subject to **Clause 19**, after the notification of the award of contract, if the Vendor fails to perform the on-boarding activities **within two(2) weeks** of the award of contract, the Purchaser shall without prejudice to its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the **0.5 per cent per day** or part thereof **of the bill of first quarter** or part thereof of delay until actual on-boarding is completed, up to **maximum deduction of 5% of the of the bill of first quarter**. Once the maximum is reached or on-boarding is delayed for more than five weeks, the Purchaser may consider termination of the Contract pursuant to **Clause 18**.
- 17.2 Service Level Agreement (SLA) related liquidated damages will be as per the **Clause** 32.

18. Termination for Default

The Purchaser may, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of contract, by written notice of default sent to the Vendor, terminate the Contract in whole or in part:

- (a) If the Vendor fails to deliver Services within the time period(s) specified in the Contract, or any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to **Clause 16**; OR
- (b) If the Vendor fails to perform any other obligation(s) under the contract.

19. Force Majeure

19.1 Notwithstanding the provisions of **Clauses 16, 17, 18** the Vendor shall not be liable for forfeiture of its performance security, liquidated damages or termination for default, if and to the extent that, its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations

under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.

- 19.2 For Purposes of this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an event beyond the control of the Vendor and not involving the Vendor and not involving the Vendor's fault or negligence and not foreseeable. Such events may include, but are not restricted to, acts of the Purchaser either in its sovereign or contractual capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions and freight embargoes.
- 19.3 If a force Majeure situation rises, the Vendor shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such conditions and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Vendor shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

20. Termination for Insolvency

The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving written notice to the Vendor, without compensation to the Vendor, if the Vendor becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser.

21. Termination for Convenience

21.1 The Purchaser may by written notice sent to the Vendor, terminate the Contract, in whole or in part at any time of its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser's convenience, the extent to which performance of work under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.

22. Dispute Resolution

- 22.1. If during the subsistence of this Contract or thereafter, any dispute between the Parties hereto arising out of or in connection with the validity, interpretation, implementation, material breach or any alleged material breach of any provision of this Contract or regarding any question, including as to whether the termination of this Contract by one Party hereto has been legitimate, the Parties hereto shall endeavor to settle such dispute amicably and/or by Conciliation to be governed by the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 or as may be agreed to between the Parties. The attempt to bring about an amicable settlement is considered to have failed as soon as one of the Parties hereto, after reasonable attempts; which attempt shall continue for not less than thirty (30) days, gives thirty (30) days notice to refer the dispute to arbitration to the other Party in writing.
- 22.2. The Arbitration proceedings shall be governed by the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996.
- 22.3. The Arbitration proceedings shall be held in Delhi, India.
- 22.4. The Arbitration proceeding shall be governed by the substantive laws of India.

- 22.5. The proceedings of Arbitration shall be in English language.
- 22.6. Except as otherwise provided elsewhere in the contract if any dispute, difference, question or disagreement arises between the parties hereto or their respective representatives or assignees, at any time in connection with construction, meaning, operation, effect, interpretation or out of the contract or breach thereof the same shall be decided by an Arbitral Tribunal consisting of three Arbitrators. Each party shall appoint one Arbitrator and the Arbitrators so appointed shall appoint the third Arbitrator who will act as Presiding Arbitrator.
- 22.7. In case, a party fails to appoint an arbitrator within 30 days from the receipt of the request to do so by the other party or the two Arbitrators so appointed fail to agree on the appointment of third Arbitrator within 30 days from the date of their appointment upon request of a party, the Chief Justice of India or any person or institution designated by him (in case of International commercial Arbitration) shall appoint the Arbitrators/Presiding Arbitrator. In case of domestic contracts, the Chief Justice of the High Court or any person or institution designated by him within whose jurisdiction the subject purchase order/contract has been placed / made, shall appoint the arbitrator/Presiding Arbitrator upon request of one of the parties.
- 22.8. If any of the Arbitrators so appointed dies, resigns, incapacitated or withdraws for any reason from the proceedings, it shall be lawful for the concerned party/ arbitrator to appoint another person in his place in the same manner as aforesaid. Such person shall proceed with the reference from the stage where his predecessor had left if both parties consent for the same, otherwise, he shall proceed de novo.
- 22.9. It is a Scope of the contract that the party invoking arbitration shall specify all disputes to be referred to arbitration at the time of invocation of arbitration and not thereafter.
- 22.10. It is also a Scope of the contract that neither party to the contract shall be entitled for any interest on the amount of the award.
- 22.11. The Arbitral Tribunal shall give reasoned award and the same shall be final, conclusive and binding on the parties.
- 22.12. The fees of the arbitrator shall be borne by the parties nominating them and the fee of the Presiding Arbitrator, costs and other expenses incidental to the arbitration proceedings shall be borne equally by the parties.
- 22.13. Subject to as aforesaid the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 and any statutory modifications or re-enactment in lieu thereof shall apply to the arbitration proceedings under this clause.
- 22.14. Continuance of the Contract: Notwithstanding the fact that settlement of dispute(s) (if any) under arbitration may be pending, the parties hereto shall continue to be governed by and perform the work in accordance with the provisions under this Contract.

23. Governing Language

The Contract shall be written in the English language. Subject to **Clause 24**, that language version of the Contract shall govern its interpretation. All correspondence and other documents pertaining to the Contract which are exchanged by the parties shall be written in that same language.

24. Applicable Law

The Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of India.

25. Notices

- 25.1 Any notice by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be sent in writing or by fax/email and confirmed in writing to the address specified for that purpose in the contract.
- 25.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.

26. Back-up Support

Vendor shall furnish details of the back-up engineering and systems support that will be available to the Purchaser. The Vendor shall be responsible for supply of spare parts and back-up maintenance support required by the Purchaser or that Agency and shall continue to make available the spare parts.

27. Price Fall

- 27.1 The prices charged for services provided under this contract by the Vendor shall in no event exceed the lowest price at which the Vendor sells Services or offers to sell Services of identical description to any persons/organizations including the Purchaser or any department of the Central or State Government or any statutory undertaking of the Central or State Govt., as the case may be, during the currency of the contract.
- 27.2 If any time during the contract period the Vendor reduces the sale price, sells or offers to sell such Services to any person/organization including the <u>purchaser</u> or any department of State or Central Govt. or any department. of a State Govt. for statutory undertaking of the Central or State Govt. as the case may be at a price lower than the price chargeable under the contract, he shall forthwith <u>notify</u> such reduction of sale or offer to sell to the purchaser and the price payable under the contract for the Services supplied after the date of coming into force of such reduction or sale or offer to sell shall stand correspondingly reduced.
- 27.3 Prices shall remain firm and shall not be subject to any upward revision on any account whatsoever throughout the currency of contract. The Purchaser, however, reserves the right to review and negotiate the charges payable for Services at the beginning of each year or at any time, whichever is earlier, to incorporate downward revisions as applicable

and necessary.

28. Prices

Prices to be firm: The prices quoted for the CAMCs shall be firm throughout the currency of contract and shall not be subject to any variation.

29. Deductions

Payments, as envisaged in **Clause 10**, shall be subject to deductions of any amount, for which the Vendor is liable under the agreement against this Bid.

30. Taxes and Duties

The Vendor shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, octroi, license fees, **demurrage charges** etc., incurred of the contracted Services to the Purchaser. If there is any reduction/increase in duties and taxes due to any reason whatsoever, after Notification of Award, the same shall be passed on to the Purchaser/Vendor.

31. "No Claim" Certificate

The Vendor shall not be entitled to make any claim whatsoever against the Purchaser under or by virtue of or arising out of this contract, nor shall the Purchaser entertain or consider any such claim, if made by the Vendor after he shall have signed a "No claim" certificate in favour of the Purchaser in such forms as shall be required by the Purchaser after the works are finally accepted.

32. Service Level Agreement (SLA)

- 32.1 The equipment should be maintained in 100% perfect working condition.
- 32.2 The Bidder shall rectify the fault(s) relating to equipment within 8 hours from the time of lodgement of complaint. In default thereof, the UIDAI shall have the right to impose liquidated damages, at the rate of 0.5 % per day of the defaulted services or uncompleted work till the rectification of the fault as per the end user satisfaction. The amount shall be deducted from the relevant/ subsequent quarter AMC amount.
- 32.3 In case, any of the equipment is down for more than 72 hours continuously and the Bidder fails to rectify the fault (s) even after 72 hours, the UIDAI shall have the right to impose liquidated damages, at the rate of 1 % of the quarterly payment per day of the delayed services or uncompleted works of the relevant equipment for the entire period the equipment is down, till the rectification of the fault as per the end user satisfaction. The amount shall be deducted from the relevant/ subsequent quarter AMC amount. In addition, if any of the equipment is down for more than 72 hours continuously, at any of the site of the UIDAI, the Bidder shall provide a compatible back-up unit with similar configuration at its own cost in the same place or at a place nearest to the site of UIDAI. If the Bidder fails to provide such back-up unit(s), as required by the UIDAI, the UIDAI shall have the right to hire the required services from a Third Party and in that case the cost of hiring shall not exceed 10% of the differential cost in respect of

equipment at the risk and cost of the bidder when it directly attributable to Second Party. Also the bidder shall ensure that the services shall not remain down for more than 15 days continuously.

- 32.4 If, however, the services remain down for more than 15 days continuously due to equipment malfunctions, then, in addition to the measures mentioned in **Clauses 32.2 and 32.3** above, the UIDAI shall have the right to impose liquidated damages, at the rate of 2 % of the quarterly payment, per day of the AMC value of the relevant equipment for the entire period for which the service(s) is/ are down, deductible from the Annual Maintenance Fees payable to the Bidder for the relevant quarter/ subsequent quarter.
- 32.5 The liquidated damages, imposed in accordance with Clauses 32.2, 32.3 and 32.4 shall, however, not exceed 10% of the total contracted value, for the defaulted services or uncompleted services only when it is directly attributable to the Second Party.
- 32.6 The UIDAI reserves the right to recover the liquidated damages, in accordance with **Clauses** 32.2, 32.3 and 32.4, from any of the quarterly payment due to the Second Party.

33. Partial/ Full damage to Hardware

- i. If the damage to the hardware is due to the power fluctuations or physical damage due to mishandling by the UIDAI personnel or the damage by external factors, UIDAI would bear the cost of the parts damaged However, the Bidder shall be required to provide immediately the hardware/ solution as standby with same configuration or higher.
- ii. In case of Partial/ Full damage or loss of the equipment due to reasons beyond the control of UIDAI, like Theft, Fire etc, the Bidder should be in a position to supply working standby equipment with same configuration or higher.
- iii. In both the cases mentioned above in (i) and (ii), fresh order will be placed by UIDAI with the Bidder for the supply of the new hardware against the lost/ damaged equipment/ component. UIDAI would pay Hardware cost to the Bidder for the equipment supplied.
- iv. In case of **damage of hardware due to flood/fire/power fluctuation** which is not attributable to the Second Party, and also when the **repairing is on chargeable** basis, and should give a report within 2 working days of intimation of breakdown regarding the component/hardware to be repaired on chargeable basis or damaged permanently.
- v. Also AMC for the Lost/Damaged equipment shall cease immediately after the submission of the report by the Service Engineer of the Bidder declaring the machine as irreparable as defined in (iv) above.

SECTION IV - CONTENTS OF BIDS

Annexe 4.1.1

A. TECHNICAL BID

BID F	PARTICULAR	S FOR Bid No		
1. 2. 3.	Name of the l Address of th Name of the 0	e Bidder		
		Company		
		ress of the officer to whom _shall be made regarding	Cell No	
W	itness :		Bidder :	
Si	gnature		Signature	
N	ame		Name	
A	ddress		Address	
D	ate		Date	
		Comp	any Seal	

Annexe 4.1.2

Technical Bid Letter

To

The Deputy Director General (Technology)
Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI)
Tower I, 9th Floor,
Jeevan Bharati Building,
Connaught Circus,
New Delhi – 110001.

Rei : Diu No.	Ref:	Bid No.		
---------------	------	---------	--	--

Sir,

We declare:

- (i) That we are system integrators of -----
- (ii) That we/our principals are equipped with adequate resources required for providing comprehensive maintenance services for IT equipments and establishment is open for inspection by the representatives of the Unique Identification Authority of India.
- 2. We hereby offer CAMC of IT equipments services at the prices and rates mentioned in the Annexe 4.2.3 & 4.2.4 of the Commercial Bid.
- 3. We enclose herewith the complete **Technical Bid** as required by you. This includes **Section IV** comprising of:

S. No. Description

- (vii) Bid Particulars (Annexe 4.1.1)
- (viii) Technical Bid Letter (Annexe 4.1.2)
- (ix) Particulars of equipment (Annexe 4.1.3)
- (x) Statement of Deviation(s) from Schedule of Requirements (Annexe 4.1.4)
- (xi) Statement of Deviation(s) from Tender Terms & Conditions (Annexe 4.1.5)
- (xii) Maintenance Infrastructure Facilities (Annexe 4.1.6)
- (xiii) Un-priced Commercial Bid (please refer to Clause 37.2(a) Section II)
- 4. We agree to abide by our offer for a period of **180 days** from the date fixed for the opening of the bids and that we shall remain bound by a communication of acceptance within that time.
- 5. We have carefully read and understood the terms & conditions of the tender and the conditions of the contract applicable to the tender and we do hereby undertake to supply as per these terms and conditions. The deviations from the Schedule of Requirements are only those mentioned in Annexe 4.1.4. The deviations from the tender Terms and Conditions are only those mentioned in Annexe 4.1.5.
- **6.** Certified that the bidder is:
 - a) The Constituted attorney of the company and the person signing the bids is the constituted attorney of the Company.

OR

ł)	The Principal Officer or his duly Authorized Representative of the Company, and he has authority to refer to arbitration disputes concerning the business of the Company by virtue of general power of attorney.									
		(NOTE: D attested by			_	-			eletions should in	nvariably be d	uly
7.			losed			_		-	al to Rsin the form of sp		use
8.	,	We do hereby undertake, that, until a formal contract is prepared and executed, this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof and placement of Letter of Intent awarding the Contract, shall constitute a binding contract between us.									
Date	d t	his day o	f	2015			Sig	nature of t	the bidder		
									Name Full Address Telephone No Fax No:		
Deta 1. 2. 3. 4.	ils	of enclosur	es:								

PARTICULARS OF EQUIPMENTS

					AMC Start
Sl	Category	Description	OEM	Quantity	Date
A. Serv	ver – Blade			-	
1		Proliant BL 465C G7	HP	672	15-Jun-16
		(Intel Xeon Duel E5-2420, 64GB, 150GB X 2 HDD)			
2		Power Edge M610	Dell	1106	1-Feb-16
		(Intel Xeon Duel X5670, 64GB, 150GB X 2 HDD)			
B. Serv	er – Rack				
3		Proliant DL 585 G7	HP	38	15-Jun-16
		(Intel Xeon Duel E5-2420, 128 GB, 150GB X 2 HDD)			
4		Power Edge R710	Dell	50	1-Feb-16
		(Intel Xeon Duel X5670, 96 GB, 300 GB X 2 HDD)			
5		Power Edge R810	Dell	126	1-Feb-16
		(Intel Xeon Duel X7560, 96 GB, 300 GB X 2 HDD)			
C. Serv	ver – Chasis			-	
6		BLC7000	HP	52	15-Jun-16
7		PowerEdge M1000	Dell	86	1-Feb-16
D. Des	ktops				
8		Optiplex 780	Dell	64	1-Feb-16
		Intel Quad core, Q9650, 4 GB RAM, 500 GB SATA HDD			
E. Swit	tch				
9		WS-C3750G-12S-E	CISCO	2	1-Feb-16
10		WS-C3750X-24T-S	CISCO	28	15-Jun-16
		WS-C3750X-24T-S with RPS, 10/100/1000X24 ports and 2X10G SFP-SR uplink port			
11		WS-C4948-10GE-S	CISCO	1	1-Feb-16

12*	N5K-C5548P-FA	CISCO	50	1-Feb-16
	N5K-C5548P-FA with 44 no - 10G, SR SFP, 2PS, 2 FAN			
13	WS-C6509-E	CISCO	4	1-Feb-16
14	N7K-C7018	CISCO	8	1-Feb-16
	(N7K-C7018, N7K-LAN1K9, N7K-M148GT-11, SFP-10G-SR, N7K-SUP1, N7K-SUP1, N7K-CPF-2GB, N7K-M132XP-12L, N7K-C7018-FAB-1, N7K-AC-6.0KW, N7K-C7018-FD-MB, DCNM-N7K-K9, N7K-ADV1K9)			
F. Internet Ro	uter			
15**	ASR 1006	CISCO	12	1-Feb-16
	(1 Gigabit ethernet with 8 ports, 4X10 Gigabit with 1 port)			
	(ASR1006, ASR1000-ESP 10, ASR1000-RP1, M-ASR1K-RP1-4GB, M-ASR1K-HDD-40GB, ASR1000-RP1, M-ASR1K-RP1-4GB, M-ASR1K-HDD-40GB, ASR100-SIP 10, SPA-1X10GE-L-V2, SPA-8X1GE-V2, XFP-10G-MM-SR, SFP-GE-S, ASR1000-SIP10, SPA-1X10GE-L-V2, XFP-10G-MM-SR, SASR1R1-AISK9-26SR, FLASR1-FW-RTU, ASR-1006-PWR-AC, CAB-1900W-UK, ASR1000-SPA, ASR1000-SPA, FLASR1-IPSEC-RTU)			
G. Storage				
16	Tape Library – Tfinity	Spectralogic	4	1-Feb-16
17	Network Attached Storage - VNX 5300	EMC	2	1-Feb-16
18	Switch - SAN Core - MDS 9513	EMC	4	1-Feb-16
19	Switch - SAN Edge - MDS 9148	EMC	28	1-Feb-16
20	Enterprise SAN (Storage for DFS (raw images)) with SAN Fabric Management Software - VMAX20K	EMC	2	1-Feb-16
21	SAN – ODS (Storage for Operational Data) with SAN Fabric Management Software - Symmetrix DMX 4	EMC	10	1-Feb-16
H. Security				
22	Event Correlation Server - RSA Envision	EMC	4	1-Feb-16

23	Firewall with content filtering - 3950B	Fortinet	4	1-Feb-16
24	Firewall with content filtering - ASA 5585	CISCO	8	1-Feb-16
25	Hardware Security Module - Luna SA 4.0	Safenet	10	1-Feb-16
26	HIDS - McAfee Host Intrusion Prevention for Servers with ePO	McAfee	22	1-Feb-16
27	NIDS - MFE Net Sec M-8000 Standard HW (With All Supplied Accessories)	McAfee	10	1-Feb-16
28	Perimeter Security Device - MFE Net Sec M-8000 FO HW (With All Supplied Accessories)	McAfee	10	1-Feb-16
I. Misc	ellaneous			
29	RedHat High Availibility plus Resilient Storage (1-2 sockets) – RedHat	RedHat	40	1-Feb-16
30	Video Wall Block - Samsung 460UT - 46" LCD Monitor super narrow Bezel 2.4mm	Samsung	24	1-Feb-16
31	Graphic Controller Cards - NVIDIA Quadro		28	1-Feb-16
32	Video Matrix Switcher including the following - Kramer -16X16 CV Matrix Switcher - VS-162V		2	1-Feb-16
	a.) Control Processor/Panel - Crestron-TPSI-CP2EPAK-6X		2	1-Feb-16
	b.) Audio matrix mixer - BIAMP- NEXIA VC		2	1-Feb-16
	c.) Audio Speaker System - Sony- Multi-format (DVD,MP3,MP4,VCD,etc.)-DVP		2	1-Feb-16

^{*} Start date for 14 units out of 50 will be 15 June 2016 ** 2 units out of 12 are installed at UIDIA HQ

Signature of Witness

Signature of Bidder

Date Place Date Place

STATEMENT OF DEVIATIONS FROM SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

Dear Sirs,

Following are the Technical deviations and variations from the Schedule of Requirements. These deviations and variations are exhaustive. Except these deviations and variations, the entire work shall be performed as per your specifications and documents.

Sl.	Section C	lause	Page	Statement of deviations and variations
No.	No.	No.	No.	

Signature of Witness Date Place Signature of Bidder Date Place

STATEMENT OF DEVIATIONS FROM TENDER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Dear Sirs,

Following are the Technical deviations and variations from the Schedule of Requirements. These deviations and variations are exhaustive. Except these deviations and variations, the entire work shall be performed as per your specifications and documents.

Sl.	Section C	lause	Page	Statement of deviations and variations
No.	No.	No.	No.	
-				

Signature of Witness Date Place Signature of Bidder Date Place

MAINTENANCE INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES

	Details of the Service Centre(s)					
Name of City where located	Address	Contact Person	Telephone Number(s)	Fax Number(s)	Remarks	

Signature of Witness	Signature of Bidder
Date	Date
Place	Place

B. COMMERCIAL BID

BID F	PARTICULAR	S FOR Bid No		
1.	Name of the l	Bidder		
2.	Address of th	e Bidder		
3.	Name of the 0	Company		
4.	Address of the	Company		
5.	Bidders Propo	sal Number and date		
6.		ress of the officer to whom	1	_
	this bid	2 2	Tel. No	•
			Cell No)
			Fax No	•
W	Vitness :		Bidder :	
S	ignature		Signature	
N	ame		Name	
A	ddress		Address	
D	ate		Date	

Company Seal

Commercial Bid Letter

To

The Deputy Director General (Technology)
Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI)
Tower I, 9th Floor,
Jeevan Bharati Building,
Connaught Circus,
New Delhi – 110001.

Ref : Bid No.	
---------------	--

•	1	٠
17		

W/e	decl	lare	٠

- (i) That we are system integrators of ------
- (ii) That we/our principals are equipped with adequate resources required for providing comprehensive maintenance services for IT equipments and establishment is open for inspection by the representatives of the Unique Identification Authority of India.
- 2. We hereby offer to provide the Services at the prices and rates mentioned in the **Annexe 4.2.3 & 4.2.4** of the Commercial Bid.
- **3.** We enclose herewith the complete **Commercial Bid** as required by you. This includes:

S.	CONTENTS
NO.	
1.	Bid Particulars (Annexe 4.2.1)
2.	Commercial Bid Letter (Annexe 4.2.2)
3.	Summary of Cost of Services offered (Annexe 4.2.3)
4.	Details of Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Costs (Annexe 4.2.4)

- 4. We agree to abide by our offer for a period of **180 days** from the date fixed for the opening of the bids and that we shall remain bound by a communication of acceptance within that time.
- 5. We have carefully read and understood the terms & conditions of the tender and the conditions of the contract applicable to the tender and we do hereby undertake to supply as per these terms and conditions.
- **6.** Certified that the bidder is:
 - c) The Constituted attorney of the company and the person signing the bids is the constituted attorney of the Company.

OR

d) The Principal Officer or his duly Authorized Representative of the Company, and he has the authority to refer to arbitration disputes concerning the business of the Company by virtue of the general power of attorney.

3.

			•	oplicable. All corrections/deletions sho sign the tender document.)	uld invariably be duly
7.		s enclosed i		ginal, for an amount equal to Rs. ing Pre-Qualifying Bid in the form as	
8.	with	your writte		a formal contract is prepared and exect of and placement of Letter of Intent at tween us.	
Dat	ed this	day of	2015	Signature of the bidder	
				Name Full Add Telephon Fax No:	
	ails of e	nclosures:			
1.					
2.					

(Please see Clause 8 & 9 of Section- II - Instruction to bidders)

SUMMARY OF THE COSTS OF SERVICES OFFERED

S. No.	Item Description	Price (in Rupees)
1.	Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Cost (Total (Z) from Annexe 4.2.4)	
2.	Total Costs (A)	

Note: The cost break-up of the various items is as shown in the Annexures.

Signature of Witness Signature of Bidder
Date Date
Place Place

NOTE: The bidder shall submit an exact copy of this Annexe with prices blanked-off along with the Technical Bid cover No TQ.

Annexe 4.2.4
(Please see Clause 8 & 9 of Section- II - Instruction to bidders, also refer to Annexe 4.1.3 for the list of IT Equipments)

DETAILS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE COSTS – RECURRING COSTS

Sl	Category	Item Description	Quantity	Unit Rate	Taxes per unit	Total Unit Cost)	Total Amount
						(7)=(5)+(6)	(8)=(4) x (7)
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
A. S	erver – Blac	de					
1		Proliant BL 465C G7	672				
2		Power Edge M610	1106				
B. Se	erver – Rac	k	•		•	•	
3		Proliant DL 585 G7	38				
4		Power Edge R710	50				
5		Power Edge R810	126				
C. S	erver – Cha	isis	<u> </u>		•	•	•
6		BLc7000	52				
7		PowerEdge M1000	86				
D. D	esktops		•		•	•	•
8		Optiplex 780	64				
E. S	witch		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	1	I.
9		WS-C3750G-12S-E	2				
10		WS-C3750X-24T-S	28				
11		WS-C4948-10GE-S	1				
12*		N5K-C5548P-FA	50				
13		WS-C6509-E	4				
14		N7K-C7018	8				
F. In	iternet Rou	ter	•		•	•	
15**		ASR 1006	12				
G. S	torage		•				
16		Tape Library – Tfinity	4				
17		Network Attached Storage - VNX 5300	2				
18		Switch - SAN Core - MDS 9513	4				

			•	1	•
19	Switch - SAN Edge - MDS 9148	28			
20	Enterprise SAN (Storage for DFS (raw images)) with SAN Fabric Management Software - VMAX20K	2			
21	SAN – ODS (Storage for Operational Data) with SAN Fabric Management Software - Symmetrix DMX 4	10			
H. Se	ecurity		•		
22	Event Correlation Server - RSA Envision	4			
23	Firewall with content filtering - 3950B	4			
24	Firewall with content filtering - ASA 5585	8			
25	Hardware Security Module - Luna SA 4.0	10			
26	HIDS - McAfee Host Intrusion Prevention for Servers with ePO	22			
27	NIDS - MFE Net Sec M-8000 Standard HW (With All Supplied Accessories)	10			
28	Perimeter Security Device - MFE Net Sec M-8000 FO HW (With All Supplied Accessories)	10			
	scellaneous				
29	RedHat High Availability plus Resilient Storage (1- 2 sockets) – RedHat	40			
30	Video Wall Block - Samsung 460UT - 46" LCD Monitor super narrow Bezel 2.4mm	24			

31		Graphic Controller Cards - NVIDIA	28				
32		Quadro Video Matrix Switcher including the following - Kramer -16X16 CV Matrix Switcher - VS-162V	2				
		a.) Control Processor/Panel - Crestron-TPSI- CP2EPAK-6X	2				
		b.) Audio matrix mixer - BIAMP- NEXIA VC	2				
		c.) Audio Speaker System - Sony-Multi- format (DVD,MP3,MP4,VC D,etc.)-DVP	2				
* 0.	Total Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Charges of IT equipments (A) Total Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Charges (Z=A)						

^{*} Start date for 14 units out of 50 will be 15 June 2016

TOTAL AMOUNT (Z) IN RUPE	ES(in figures)	
	(in words)	_
Signature of Witness	Signature of Bidder	
Date	Date	
Place	Place	

#Service Tax, Education Cess, Works Contract Tax etc, if applicable, should be shown separately.

NOTE: The bidder shall submit an exact copy of this Annexe with prices blanked-off along with the Technical Bid cover No TQ.

^{** 2} units out of 12 are installed at UIDIA HQ

SECTION V - SCOPE OF WORK

1. **DEFINITIONS**

- i. "UIDAI" means the Unique Identification Authority of India.
- ii. "The Purchaser" means the President of India acting through the Director General & Mission Director, Unique Identification Authority of India or any other representative authorized by the Director General, Unique Identification Authority of India.
- iii. "Purchase Officer" means the officer signing the acceptance of Bid and includes any officer who has authority to execute the relevant contract on behalf of the Purchaser.
- iv. The "Contract" means the agreement entered in to between the Purchaser and the Vendor as recorded in the Contract Form signed by the Purchaser and the Vendor including all attachments and annexes there to and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
- v. The "Vendor" means the person or the firm or the company with whom the order of comprehensive annual maintenance services is placed.
- vi. "The Contract Price" means the price payable to the Vendor under the Contract for the full and proper performance of its contractual obligations;
- vii. "Service" means comprehensive annual maintenance services of IT equipments;
- viii. "Acceptance of Bid" means the letter/email or any memorandum communicating to the selected Bidder the acceptance of his Bid and includes an advance acceptance of his Bid.
- ix. "Supply" means once the purchaser issues a Purchase Order, the bidder has to provide services within stipulated time.

2. SCOPE OF WORK

- 2.1 The Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI) is inviting bids for "Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Contract (CAMC) of IT Equipments" for its Data Centres at Bengaluru and Delhi/NCR or any other place indicated by UIDAI.
- 2.2 Immediately, after the receipt of Letter of Intent/purchase order, the selected bidder shall have to visit the Data Centres and coordinate with the Managed Service Provider (MSP).

3. SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS

(i) The Bidder shall be responsible to provide maintenance of IT Equipments.

- (ii) UIDAI will not be responsible if the Bidder has not provisioned some components, sub-components, assemblies, sub-assemblies as part of the bill of material in the Bid. The Bidder will have to make all provisions to meet the schedule of requirements at no additional cost and time implications to UIDAI.
- (iii) The Bidder should ensure that there is a 24x7 comprehensive onsite support arrangement during the currency of the contract with the OEMs for respective components (Sl no 1 to Sl no 29 of Annexe 4.1.3 of Section IV). The Bidder should ensure that all the OEMs have an understanding of the service levels required by UIDAI. The OEMs should provide an undertaking in this regard in the format provided in **Section VI**, **Appendix E**.
- (iv) Any additional components, sub-components, assemblies, sub-assemblies that would be required to meet the desired performance requirements under "live" conditions will have to be provisioned by the Bidder at no additional cost to UIDAI and without any project delays.
- (v) 1(one) Resident Engineer to be deployed at each both Data Centre on a 24x7 basis, for maintenance and technical support/services by the bidder for the entire duration of the Contract.

4. SERVICES

4.1 Requirements and Objectives

- 4.1.1 The Bidder shall provide comprehensive annual maintenance service (including spare parts, labour etc.) of IT Equipments at Bengaluru and Delhi/NCR or any other location indicated by UIDAI.
- 4.1.2 The services, including but not limited to the following, should be provided
 - (i) Annual Maintenance of Servers and the other equipments.
 - (ii) Performance, supervision, maintenance and repair of the equipments including spare parts, if required.
 - (iii) Operational Support required by the applications running and added, from time to time.
 - (iv) Services for any upgrades, patches or any other related issues.
- 4.1.3 The selected bidder shall be responsible for coordination with all the existing vendors of UIDAI, troubleshooting, addressing borderline issues, coordinating with users at UIDAI locations, in case of any issues.
- 4.1.4 UIDAI shall provide necessary space and required infrastructure for resident engineer. However, UIDAI shall not provide for any Desktops, Printers, Stationary, etc. required by the resources for providing services under this contract.
- 4.1.5 All the personnel employed by the selected bidder for this contract shall adhere to the security policy of UIDAI and should follow the policy of UIDAI in terms of software, configuration and services.
- 4.1.6 **1(one) Resident Engineer** to be deployed at each Data Centres on a 24x7 basis, for maintenance and technical support/services for equipments supplied by the bidder for the duration of the Contract.

4.1.7 **Defective Media Retention**: UIDAI shall retain defective hard disk or eligible SSD/Flash drive components that UIDAI does not want to relinquish due to sensitive data contained within the disk ('Disk or SSD/Flash Drive'). The Bidder should provision for this requirement in their bid.

4.2 Technical Support

- 4.2.1 The selected bidder shall provide **comprehensive onsite support** to UIDAI at the designated Data Centers on a **24x7** basis to ensure **99.9% uptime** for the infrastructure provided as part of the Bid.
- 4.2.2 Ensure that the entire solution as a whole is operational and run according to stipulated performance standards.
- 4.2.3 The selected bidder shall commit to provide all necessary resources and expertise to resolve any issues and carry out required changes, optimizations and modification so that complete system as a whole works according to the specified requirements and satisfaction of UIDAI.
- 4.2.4 The selected bidder shall provide comprehensive technical support services for all the equipment proposed for the entire period of the contract. The technical support shall include all the upgrades, updates and patches that are released by the respective OEMs during the period of contract.
- 4.2.5 The selected bidder shall assign 1(one) onsite hardware support engineer on a 24x7 basis at each of the Data Centre sites to diagnose, troubleshoot and resolve issues with the equipment / components supplied. The engineer should possess capability for supporting the equipments and components proposed, but not limited to undertaking preventive and break-fix maintenance, troubleshooting, resolving problems, tuning, etc.

4.3 Ongoing Maintenance & Support Services

- 4.3.1 The Bidder shall be responsible for executing hardware and software updates when necessary.
- 4.3.2 The bidder shall be responsible for periodic health check of the systems, troubleshooting problems, analysis and implementing rectification measures.

SECTION VI – APPENDICES

Appendix A

CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of between Unique Identification Authority of India, (hereinafter referred to as "the Purchaser") which expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof mean and be deemed to include its authorized representatives and permitted assigns of the FIRST PART and having its Office at (hereinafter referred to as "the Vendor") which expression shall unless excluded by or repugnant to the context, includes their Heirs, Executors, Administrators, Legal Representatives and permitted Assigns of the SECOND PART.

WHEREAS Purchaser is desirous of entering into a contract for Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Services with the Vendor, for the Data Centres of Unique Identification Authority of India in Bengaluru and Manesar or any other location as indicated by UIDAI, and has accepted to pay to the Vendor the contract amount for provisioning of related Services at a total cost not exceeding (Rupees) (hereinafter referred to as "the Contract Price").

AND WHEREAS the **Vendor** has agreed to provide Services as listed in Bid Document No_____, as per the rate(s) given in **the table below mentioned hereinafter**.

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement viz:
 - **A.** Bid Document No_____ regarding "Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Services of IT equipments" in the Data Centres of Unique Identification Authority of India, including
 - **B.** Clarifications issued by the **Purchaser**.
 - **C.** Technical and Commercial bid submitted by the **Vendor**.
 - **D.** Notification of award vide Order No. dated issued to the Vendor.
 - E. Acceptance of notification of award by the Vendor vide Vendor Letter No._____ dated

3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the **Purchaser** to the **Vendor** as hereinafter mentioned, the **Vendor** hereby covenants with the **Purchaser** to provide the services and to remedy therein in conformity in all aspects with the provisions of the aforesaid Bid under reference.

4. The **Purchaser** hereby covenants to pay the **Vendor** in consideration of the provision of Services as listed in Table below and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

Signature

Designation

Name

Date Place -----

New Delhi

SI	Item Description	No. of Units	Unit Rate	Taxes per unit	Total Unit Cost [(6)=(4)+(5)]	Total Cost including Taxes (8)=(3)x(6)
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)
1						
2						
3						
4						

5. TOTAL CONTRACT VALUE:(Rupees)

	hereof the parties hereto have cause we the day and year first above writ	•	to be executed in accordance with
	ed and delivered for & on behalf	of the Preside	and delivered for and on behalf nt of India acting through the eral, Unique Identification ndia
Signature		Signature	
Name		Name	
Designation		Designation	
Address		Address	
Date		Date	
Place :	New Delhi	Place	New Delhi
In the preser	nce of:	In the presenc	e of:

Signature

Name Designation

Date

Place

New Delhi

Appendix B

PERFORMANCE BANK GUARANTEE

(To be stampe	ed in accordance with Stamp Act)
The non-judicial stamp p	paper should be in the name of issuing Bank
Ref	Bank Guarantee No
	Date
To	
Unique Identification Authority of India	ı
Department of Electronics & Informatio	on Technology, Government of India
3 rd Floor, Tower II, Jeevan Bharati Buile	ding,
Connaught Circus, New Delhi-110001	_

Dear Sirs,

- 1. In consideration of the Unique Identification Authority of India, Department of Electronics & Information Technology, Government of India, on behalf of the President of India, (hereinafter referred to as the 'Owner' which expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof include successors. administrators and assigns) having M/s..... with its Registered/Head office at (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor" which expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof, include its successors, administrators, executors and assigns), a Contract by issue of the Contractor, resulting in a Contract, bearing No.......... dated......valued at......for "Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Services of IT equipments" and the Contractor having agreed to provide a Contract Performance Guarantee for the faithful performance of the entire Contract not exceeding Rs. (in words & figures).
- 3. The Owner shall have the fullest liberty without affecting in any way the liability of the Bank under this guarantee, from time to time to extent the time for performance of the Contract by the Contractor. The Owner shall have the fullest liberty, without affecting this guarantee, to postpone from time to time the exercise of any powers vested in them or of any right which they might have against the Contractor, and to exercise the same at any time in any manner, and either to enforce or to

forbear to enforce any covenants, contained or implied, in the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor or any other course or remedy or security available to the Owner. The Bank shall not be released of its obligations under these presents by any exercise by the Owner of its liberty with reference to the matters aforesaid or any of them or by reason of any other act of omission or commission on the part of the Owner or any other indulgences shown by the Owner or by any other matter or thing whatsoever which under law would, but for this provision have the effect of relieving the Bank.

- 4. The Bank also agrees that the Owner at its option shall be entitled to enforce this Guarantee against the Bank as a principal debtor, in the first instance without proceeding against the Contractor and not withstanding any security or other guarantee the Owner may have in relation to the Contractor's liabilities.
- 5. This guarantee will not be discharged due to the change in the constitution of the Bank or the Contractor(s)/Service Provider(s).

	Contractor(s)/Service Provider(s).	
6.	the 10% of the value of the contract/ (2) This Bank Guarantee will be valid u (3) We are liable to pay the guarantee	restricted to Rs (in words & figures) being notification of award.
this	witness whereof the Bank, through s	its authorised officer, has set its hand and stamp or at
	(Signature)	(Signature)
••••	(Name)	(Name)
	(Official Address)	(Designation with Bank Stamp)

Attorney as per

Appendix C

BIDDER'S PROFILE

A. General Information:

- (i) Location of Corporate Head Quarters:
- (ii) Date and Country of Incorporation:
- (iii) ROC Reference No.:
- (iv) Details of Registration with appropriate Authorities for Service:
- (v) Turnover
 - a. Average Turnover for last three years
 - b. Average Turnover for last three years from the maintenance of IT equipment (server, storage, networking, desktop, IT security product, software) services
- (vii) Geographical Distribution of the Vendor:

(Offices, locations to be specified with their respective staff strength)

- (viii) Total number of maintenance services of IT equipment (server, storage, networking, desktop, IT security product, software) provided:
 - a. In India
- (ix) Number of employees:
 - a. Total Number
 - b. Hardware and Software Maintenance

B. Similar Reference Sites

S	Customer Name and Address	Contact Person's	Name of Item	No. of Units
No.		Name,	Supplied/ date of	Supplied
		Designation,	supply	
		Phone/Fax No.		

Appendix D

List of Locations where maintenance services needs to be provided

S	City	Address	Name of Contact Person
No.			
1	HEBBAL	UIDAI Data Center Complex	
	(BENGALURU)	CA Site No.1, NTI Layout,	
		Rajiv Gandhi Nagar, Tata Nagar Entrance,	
		Kodigehalli, Bangalore – 560092.	
		INDIA	
2	MANESAR	UIDAI Data Center Complex	
	(Haryana)	Plot No.1, Sector M2,	
		IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon,	
		Haryana – 122050.	
		INDIA	

Appendix E

Statement of Undertaking From OEM

To

The Deputy Director General (Technology), Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDAI), Tower I, 9th Floor, Jeevan Bharati Building, Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110001.

Sir,

C...h

Sub	:	Statement of Undertaking from OEM.	
Ref	:	Bid No covering "Comprehensive Annual Maintenance	
		Contract (CAMC) of IT Equipments" in the Data Centres of Unique	

que Identification Authority of India in Hebbal (Bengaluru) and Manesar

(Haryana).

We, the undersigned OEM, having read and examined in details all the bidding documents in respect of the above mentioned Bid No. , in respect to Product(s) offered / supplied by us and as a gesture towards our commitment for continued support for our product(s) do hereby declare as under;

- 1. We confirm that we would provide the support for Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Contract (CAMC) of IT Equipments to the Unique Identification Authority of India (herein referred to as "UIDAI") through
- 2. We confirm that we would treat UIDAI as a preferred customer and that resolution of all problems and issues reported to us in fulfillment of the above mentioned Bid would be undertaken by us on priority basis.
- 3. We hereby confirm that we shall support the AMC services for a period of 1 year from the date of its acceptance by UIDAI.
- 4. We hereby agree to supply and/or install all new releases, versions, any type of update, upgrade patch and/or bug fixes for the software or firmware from time to time at no additional cost to UIDAI.
- 5. We hereby agree to abide by the General Terms & Conditions of this Bid. We further agree to provision the required critical spare/components at the designated sites of UIDAI for meeting the uptime commitment.
- 6. In case of any dissatisfaction or default on our part in providing the level of support desired by UIDAI, we agree to extend the support required to meet the commitments made without any financial liability to UIDAI.

- 7. We herby agree to provide to UIDAI, required assistance, consultancy and services beyond the defined scope of work to resolve issues under critical and unforeseen situations.
- **8.** We hereby confirm our commitment towards providing the necessary support and assistance in case of any problems/issues during the maintenance contract.

We hereby confirm that this undertaking is made in good faith and the aforesaid declarations are binding on us for the entire term of contract under the aforementioned Bid.

Thanking you,	
Yours faithfully,	
(Signature)	
For and on behalf of:	(name of OEM)
Authorized Signatory	
Name :	
Designation:	
Office Seal:	
Place:	
Date:	

Appendix F

BANK GUARANTEE FOR EMD

(To be stamped in accordance with Stamp Act)

The non-judicial stamp paper should be in the name of issuing Bank

Ref	Bank Guarantee No
	Date
Го	
Depar 3 rd Flo	e Identification Authority of India tment of Electronics & Information Technology, Government of India or, Tower II, Jeevan Bharati Building, nught Circus, New Delhi-110001
Dear S	irs,
1.	In accordance with Invitation to Bid for "Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Services of IT equipments" under your Specification No
2.	We, the
3.	This guarantee will not be discharged due to the change in the constitution of the Bank or the Supplier(s)/Service Provider(s).
4.	Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove:
	 (1) Our liability under this guarantee is restricted to Rs
	In witness whereof the Bank, through its authorised officer, has set its hand and stamp or thisday of20at

WITNESS		
(Signature)	(Signature)	
(Name)	(Name)	
(Official Address)	(Designation with Bank Stamp)	
	Attorney as per Power of Attorney No	
	Dated	